* - - - . L]

Earth Negotiations Bulletin

. r * L) L) L] L] L] L] L] . . » * *

A Reporting Sem’lce for Emzronmenr and Development Negotiafions

Vol. 12 No. 54

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

Thursday, 7 August 1997

HIGHLIHTS FROM MEETING OF THE
AD HOC GROUP ON THE BERLIN MANDATE
6 AUGUST 1997

The AGBM Chair held amorning briefing for observersonthe
outcome of negotiationsin the non-groups. All non-groups consid-
ered revised draft textson the second-to-last day of AGBM-7. The
non-group on ingtitutions and mechanismsmet inthe morning and
was schedul ed to reconvenein the evening. The non-group on poli-
ciesand measures met in the morning and held small group consul-
tationsinthe afternoon. The non-group on QELROsmet inthe
afternoon.

OBSERVER BRIEFING

The Chair of the QELROs non-group, Luiz Gylvan MeiraFilho
(Brazil), said delegateswereworking on adraft text on coverage
that will reflect the non-group’ sexchange of views, but hesaid it
wastoo early for negotiations. He said distribution of QELROs
among Annex | Partieswasat asimilar stage, with delegatesreiter-
ating proposalsfrom their formal presentations.

Alsoundecided isthe possibility of aspecific objectiveunder a
protocol, whether to include along-term stabilization target, and
whether to describe the objectiveintermsof global atmospheric
GHG concentrationsor other measures such astemperature or sea-
leve rise. Hesaid it islikely that AGBM-7 will concludewith
bracketed text on the different approaches.

Takao Shibata (Japan), Chair of theinstitutionsand mecha-
nismsnon-group, said del egates had completed afirst discussion of
all issuesbeforethe non-group. He said two proposals had been
considered regarding entry into force of alegal instrument: basing
it on the number of ratificationsasinthe FCCC; or weighting entry
into force by percentage of GHG emissionsby Parties. Theemis-
sions-based approach could tieentry into forceto Parties
percentage of all global emissionsor of thoseby Annex | Parties.

AGBM Chair Ralll Estrada-Oyuela (Argentina) said the non-
group on Article4.1 wasworking to clarify themeaning of certain
paragraphsinitsdraft and revisethetext to show wherethelack of
agreement exists. He said the non-group on policiesand measures
would attempt to reconciletwo approaches, including one
presented in apaper by the European Union. Thepositionsare
currently far apart and will need considerable discussion.

Estrada said an extended Bureau meeting Tuesday had
addressed organizational and substantiveissues. He noted aclear
general trend not to establish anew objectivefor aprotocol but to
keep the objective now inthe FCCC. He al so said del egates
preferred not to devel op new principles. Thiswould simplify nego-
tiators' work and avoid potential yearsof discussion.

Asked whether the AGBM agreement would belikely to define
adangerouslevel of CO2 concentrations, Estradasaidit did not
seem appropriatetoinclude, inalegal instrument, valuesthat could
change over timeinlight of scientific research. Respondingto a
question whether aglobal capwould follow global distribution or
vice versa, the Chair said that political negotiationsof thissort
usually aim at results. He said the agreement isfirst produced and
then explained. The philosophy followstheresults.

NON-GROUP ON INSTITUTIONS AND MECHANISMS

At amorning meeting, the non-group oninstitutions and mech-
anismshad alengthy discussion onaChair’ stext containing ashort
and |long version of thedraft Preamble. On the short version, some
Partiesargued for simplification and clarification of referencesto
the Berlin Mandate. Thistriggered callsfrom Parties concerned
about economicimpactsonfossil fuel producersfor there-intro-
duction of paragraphsin thelong version to meet their concerns.
Thedisputed text, including amendments, remainsin brackets.

Onthe questions of decision-making and whether the FCCC
COP should a so serve asthe COP of the Protocol or other legal
instrument, some Parties argued against any overlap inthefunc-
tionsof the FCCC COP. They proposed aM eeting of the Partiesto
the Protocol, to be held only in conjunction with the FCCC COP.
Decision-making on the Protocol would be restricted to the Parties
totheinstrument. The Chair undertook drafting anew text incorpo-
rating aproposal from aregional group.

Ontherole of the Secretariat, argumentswere presented for
flexibility to allow the Secretariat to take on additional functions.

NON-GROUP ON POLICIES AND MEASURES

The non-group on policiesand measuresmet in the morning to
consider adraft text proposed by the Chair containing two alterna
tives. In one, commitmentswould befulfilled individually. The
other allowsfor the possibility of common/coordinated policies
and measures. Aninitial exchange of viewstook place onthetext,
and some amendmentswere madeto the second alternative. In
general, del egations noted the considerabl e difference between the
two aternativesin termsof content. Some del egations suggested
that the solution to thiswould betheinclusion of anintermediate
aternative.

A group of countriesrequested that aproposal it had presented
previously asanon-paper beincluded inthedraft asathird alterna-
tive. Several del egations objected to thisand indicated that the
proposal had been duly reflected under the second alternative.
Other del egationsalso regretted not seeing their proposal sincluded
inthetext. One of the proposals pertained to guidelinesfor P& Ms,
whileothersreferred to national action plansand performanceindi-
cators.

Toallow theinclusion of proposalsof adiffering nature under
the samealternative, thetitle of the section was changed to amore
general oneon“Policiesand Measures.” Onthe second alternative,
adelegation said that while coordinated action should not be
excluded, it should not be mandated either. Several delegations
suggested changing the framework and structure of thisalternative.
A group of countries suggested that some principlesand guidelines
should framethe section on policiesand measures.

A group of countries noted the need to changethefirst two
paragraphs under the second aternative on policiesand measures
to better reflect the proposal s upon which they were based. There
wasadiscussion on whether areferenceto asubset of Partiesunder
Annex | should beincludedin the paragraph on cooperation to
establish coordinated cross-sectoral, cost-effective policy instru-
ments. Inthe afternoon, del egations engaged ininformal consulta-
tionson how differing proposalswereto beincluded under the
samealternative.

Thisissueof the Earth NegotiationsBulletin <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by PaolaBettelli <paobe@sprynet.com>, Chad Carpenter, LL.M. <chadc@iisd.org>, Peter
Doran <PF.Doran@ul st.ac.uk>, Benjamin Simmons <bls23@columbia.edu> and Steve Wise <swise@igc.apc.org>. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org>
and the Managing Editor is Langston James Kimo Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>.The sustaining donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry for Development
Cooperation and the Government of Canada. General support for the Bulletin during 1997 is provided by the Department for International Development (DI D) of the United
Kingdom, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Denmark, the European Community (DG-XI), the German Ministry of Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety,
the Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affairs of Austria, the Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the Swiss Federal Office of the Environment, and UNDP. ENB can
be contacted at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. Excerptsfrom the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in other publications only with appropriate citation.
Electronic versions of the ENB are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages.




Vol. 12, No. 54 - 7 August 1997

Page 2

In the evening hours, the non-group recon-
vened and was presented with two new documents by the Chair on
genera provisionsand alternativesfor policiesand measures.

Thedocument on alternativesfor policiesand measures, refers
tothetypesof P& Msthat countrieslistedinan*Annex Q" shall
adopt or givepriority to. Typesof policiesand measures have been
classified under different lists (A, B and C). It was agreed that para-
graphson voluntary policiesand measureswould be deleted, and
that P& Msunder list B would be*“coordinated” instead of
“gspecific”.

Regarding the document on general provisions, aproposa was
madeto replace paragraphsin thetext on the devel opment of
national plansfor thelimitation and reduction of anthropogenic
emissions by sources and theincremental rate of removal by sinks.
A paragraph wasincluded on the discretion Parties shall haveto
select those policiesand measuresthat are best suited to national
circumstancesfor meeting their emission limitation and reduction
commitments. It was agreed that the Chair would present the
AGBM plenary arevised draft text, based on the discussions of the
non-group.

NON-GROUP ON QELROS

The non-group on QEL ROs began consideration of arevised
negotiating text. Several delegatesasked for discussionto be
suspended until thefollowing day to give Partiesachanceto read
and consider thetext. On the purpose of the agreement, one Party
proposed that QEL ROs should apply to theweighted average
global warming potential based on aone hundred year timeline of
anthropogeni c emissionsrather than simply theweighted total. On
methodol ogies, one Party noted that it hasstill not been decided
whether the methodol ogieswill be decided upon by the Conference
of Partiesor Meeting of Parties.

On criteriafor the addition of GHGsto the Annex, adelegate
proposed that the criteriashoul d be considered as suggested rather
than mandatory. One del egation proposed that the Parties shall
review and revise global warming potential sand methodol ogies.
Onthe nature of target and baseline, many delegationswere
confused asto the various optionsoutlined in thetext. One delega-
tion was concerned that thetext had been drafted so that budget
periodswereinherently linked to flat rate targetswith no considera-
tion of budget periodsfor differentiated targets. Thechair
suspended the meeting while several del egationsdiscussed thetext.
No agreement was reached by the del egations and the meeting was
adjourned.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Wednesday’ sobserver briefing ended withthe AGBM Chair’s
commentsthat thetrend of discussion at the extended Bureau
meeting wasto apply only the FCCC’ sobjectiveto aProtocol.
Within minutes of the announcement, reports of counter trends
emerged from some of theinterested playerswho had participated
inthe Bureau meeting. Somesaid that adecisionto limit the
Protocol’ sobjectiveto that set out inthe FCCC could haveimplica-
tionsfor those proposalsfrom regional groupsand other Parties
that stipulate or propose the devel opment of formulaefor setting a
ceiling on GHG emissionsbased, for example, on sealevel and
temperaturerises. Chair Estradahas, reportedly, argued that the
introduction of anew objective may cause confusion.

A number of theinterested Parties suggested that the matter had
not been resolved, and proposal s contai ning new obj ectiveswould
stay onthetableat the AGBM. Oneregional representative said
“wehavenot given up.” They marked Estrada’ sannouncement
downto“forceful chairmanship” and suggested that hewas some-

what ahead of the Partiesin hisreading of Tuesday’ smeeting.
Some also conceded that, in principle, it would be advisableto
restrict theintroduction of new objectivesbut argumentswould be
made for an exception nonetheless. Others said that using the same
FCCC overall objectivewould till leaveroomtoincorporate
proposed new objectives, perhapswithin the section on emissions
limitations and reduction objectives. Aninterested Party has
reportedly been tasked to conduct consultationsin an effort to
mergethe new proposals.

THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY

Non-group meetings: Meetings of the non-groupswill be held
from 10:00 am -1:00 pm.

Consult the el ectronic notice board for roomsand times.

Press Conference: AGBM Chair Estradaand Executive-
Secretary Zammit-Cutajar will hold apressbriefingat 1:15pmin
the Reger Room.

AGBM: AGBM isexpected to holditsfinal sessionfrom 3:00-
5:00pminthe Maritim Room. AGBM will consider: negotiation of
aprotocol or another legal instrument, organization of work for
AGBM-8 and thereport of the session.

CLIMATE-L

Thelnternational Institutefor Sustainable Development (11SD),
publisher of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin, ispleased to
announceanew e-mail distributionlist intended to facilitateinfor-
mation exchangeonthe FCCC. CLIMATE-L isamoderated list
for the dissemination of information on recent events, past and
upcoming meetings, copies of upcoming position papersand
pointersto on-line resources such asWWW sitesand documents.
CLIMATE-L isintended to be afocused list with short messages.
Subscribers, upon request, canreceive one“ digest” e-mail message
per week.

Tosubscribetothe CLIMATE-L list, send an e-mail message
to<listproc@mbnet.mb.ca> and include thefollowing in the body
of the message: subscribe CLIMATE-L [your name].

Subscribers can al so send amessageto othersonthelist at
<CLIMATE-L @mbnet.mb.ca>. For assistancein subscribing or
for further information contact the Earth Negotiations Bulletin at
<enb@iisd.org>.

LINKAGES ON-LINE COVERAGE

TheLinkagesWWW-server, inadditiontothedaily ENB
reports, now features photosand Real Audio recordings, including
excerptsfrom Chair Estrada’ sand Executive Secretary Zammit-
Cutajar’ sopening statements. The Linkagessite can befound at
http://www.iisd.callinkages/climate/climate.html.

ENB SUMMARY OF THE MEETINGS OF THE
FCCC SUBSIDIARY BODIES

The ENB will produce asummary report of SBI-6, SBSTA-6,
AG13-5and AGBM-7. For information on receiving the summary
viae-mail, send amessageto the Earth Negotiations Bulletin at
<enb@iisd.org>.



